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CHAIR CARROLL: ... (gavel) . .. This Land Use Committee Meeting of August 16,2006 is now in
session. This afternoon we have with us Members Anderson, Johnson, Mateo, Molina and
Tavares. Excused today are Members Kane and Hokama. Ah, Mr. Pontanilla will be joining us
shortly. Members, we have only one thing on the agenda this morning, Land Use Item 33.
ITEM NO. 33:

CHANGE IN ZONING FOR KIHEI ACE HARDWARE STORE (C.c. No. 02-209)

CHAIR CARROLL: The Committee is in receipt of the following:
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1. County Communication No. 02-209, from the former Planning Director, transmitting an
application submitted by BFS, Inc. for a Change in Zoning from R-3 Residential District to B-2
Community Business District to construct a new Kihei Ace Hardware and Retail Shop at 1488 S.
Kihei Road, Kihei, Maui.
2. Correspondence dated July 19, 2006, from the Department of Corporation Counsel,
transmitting a proposed bill "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING FROM
R-3 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO B-2 COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT
(CONDITIONAL ZONING) FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT KIHEI, MAUl, HAWAII".
Purpose of the proposed bill is to grant the Change in Zoning request.
3. Correspondence dated July 6, 2006, from Michael Mune ... , Munekiyo, Project Manager,
Munekiyo & Hiraga, indicating that BFS, Inc. has decided not to use the property for a hardware
store purpose, but is still requesting a Change in Zoning to B-2 Community Business District.
4. The Committee is also in receipt of correspondence dated August 15, 2006 from
Mr. Munekiyo concerning the Applicant's current position on a proposed Change in Zoning
request.
We will hear a five minute presentation from the Applicant and afterwards from the Department,
foHowing which we'll have public testimony, and then we will begin discussion on the
application. If the applicant or the representative could please come forward.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Committee Members. My name is Mike Munekiyo and
I'm here this afternoon on behalf ofBFS, Inc. Just to start our presentation, Mr. Chair, I'd like to
introduce Guy Kamitaki and Paul Mizoguchi who are principals in BFS, and they would like to
just open up with a, a few words.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MR. KAMITAKI: My name is Guy Kamitaki, and this is my cousin Paul Mizoguchi, and we're the
principals
Maui Varieties, Ltd. and BFS, Inc. First of all, I, I wanted to thank aU of you for
your time and your consideration on our rezoning request. We own and operate the Ben
store
the Kaahumanu Shopping Center and the Ace Hardware stores in Kihei, Lahaina, and
Pukalani, here on Maui. Our family business was started in the 1940's by our grandma Shikano
Kamitaki in Kahului. We opened our first Ben Franklin store in the Old Kahului Shopping
Center over 50 years ago. In the early 1980's, we started opening Ace Hardware stores in
Hawaii. We consider ourselves really fortunate to still be doing business in Hawaii. We are
fortunate to have survived the onslaught of the many big box retailers who have come here. We
now operate stores on Oahu, Maui, Big Island, and Kauai. We are one of the few third
generation local re ... , retailers still doing business in Hawaii. We've owned this Kihei property
since 1989. Our plans were to one day be able to build and operate one of our stores on this
property. Unfortunately, the Maui Planning Commission voted not to recommend approval of
our Change in Zoning request because of concerns from the neighboring residents about the
hardware store proposal. As a kamaaina local company, we understand the need to be respectful
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of our neighbors. So after spending months deciding on what to do, our family felt that it'd be
best to renegotiate our lease at our current store location in Azeka Shopping Center. We were
successful in getting a long-term lease and as a result have decided not to pursue the hardware
store use at the property. It's still important for us to get the proper business zoning for the
property, so that it can have functional utility. As Michael explained, our family'S philosophy
has always been to do things the right way, and we feel that obtaining zoning is no exception.
I'll now let Mike explain what we want to do with the property.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Thank you, Guy and Paul. Members, I did hand out a packet and this is more in ... ,
informational showing the location of the project and surrounding uses. Some photos in vicinity
of the project, so you can take a look at that as the discussions proceed. But fundamentally what
I'd like to do is just summarize for the Committee what BFS would like to do. I think
recognizing the difficulty in this particular set of circumstances where there is no specific
proposal for development given that the hardware store proposal was withdrawn. What BFS
would like to do is have the chance to at least do minimal or less, less intrusive type of, types of
business uses, B-1 uses, apartments, offices-type uses as I indicated in my letter of August 15 th ,
and to take that kind of limited use and develop a couple of development scenarios, actually
come up with plans, which could represent probable outcomes if the zoning change were
approved. And with those plans, of course, we would go back to the KCA. We'd go back to the
neighboring residents, get their input, make sure everybody's comfortable with the plans. Again,
this not necessarily reflecting what will ultimately be developed but more theoretical what can be
developed on the zoning. And then based on that, we would be able to do updates to traffic
studies, drainage studies, so forth. But then come back to the Committee in, in 60 or 90 days
and/or however long, we, we, you know, we can ... would take to get through the process and
have the Committee consider the items again with more sound technical information, solid
community input hopefully, and, and, you know, basically a better basis for discussing the
project. So, again, we realize that it's a, a unique set of circumstances that we face. We
appreciate being put on the agenda today because it does give us a chance to kind of take a step
forward at this point. It's been a long, a long journey. So, again, we appreciate the Committee's
consideration of our request today. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Munekiyo. Mr. Foley or Mr. Alueta.
Good afternoon, good afternoon, Mr. Chair. As indicated our transmittal
was a September 27, 2002--that has been almost four years since the project was first transmitted
to the Council. As indicated, the original plans was for, , . or it is, the request is for a Change in
Zoning from R-3, excuse me, R-3 to B-2 Community Business, and to develop approximately a
12,000 square feet of retail space on the property, which is approximately 43,390 square feet. A
good portion of project site or a portion of the project site is an enhanced wetland Project. In
discussions at the Planning Commission level things that weighed heavily in their discussion
with regards to the project and why they, the Comm .. " Commission recommended denial of the
project was that there was language within the existing Community Plan, which indicated that:
1) limit commercial services to neighborhood business uses or other low key business activities
with a residential scale on those properties which abuts single-family residential areas. And the
project is currently zoned Single-Family and is abutted on two sides by property that is zoned
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and designated for Single-Family in the Com ... , Community Plan and the Kihei Zoning Map. At
the time that the applicant's proposal was a hardware store and that it was not listed ... permitted
use in the B-1 Neighborhood Business District. Obviously, there's been a lot of things that have
changed as indicated by, by the applicant and their, their representative as far as their plan.
Although this is a land use entitlement issue, they are once again seeking a B-2 with some type
of limitations. And I guess that could be an alternative with their proposal.
Secondly, there was a question that I did get. It was more of a phone call from Council Services
with regards to the, some of the history as to when the project was designated. It was designated
on this last go around of the Community Plan. So, it is not on the original '80, early '80's KiheiMakena Community Plans. It was done during the, the current Community Plan process ... past
Community Plan process. That's all I have at this time, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. You have anything at this time, Mr. Foley?
MR. FOLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I would only add that we're, we're generally supportive of the
concept of changing the potential land use of this property from retail to a combination of offices
and, and residential. And we realize that the site plans would just illustrate a couple of
possibilities. They wouldn't ... the site plans themselves wouldn't be specifically what would
have to be built on the, the property. There would basically be list of, of permitted uses. I think
the primary question here before the Committee is one of procedure. Would it be appropriate to
hold this permit in abeyance while they do a new traffic report and go back to the community
and the KCA? Or, would it be appropriate to start over and start with a new application and do a
traffic report and not only go to the KCA in the neighborhood, but also go to the Planning
Commission? Obviously, the Planning Commission that would review the project at this time is
completely different than the Planning Commission that reviewed the project more than four
years ago. So, I think those are the two procedural options before the, the Com ... , Committee
and, you know, there is something to be said for the concept of, of, of starting over with a, a, a
totally clean application with low intensity uses being proposed and a, and a new traffic study.
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Foley. Corporation Counsel, do you have anything you would like
to say at this time?
MR. GIROUX: No, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. We will now open public testimony. Public testimony is now open.
Is anybody signed up for public testimony?
MS. NAKATA: No, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone in the gallery that wishes to give public testimony today? Hearing
none. Ifthere's no objection, we will close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed. Ms. Anderson followed by Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Could I get clarification on what your
intent is today because, you know, they just ... their consultant just said that they intend to do
some traffic impact analysis based on this new concept and then bring it back to the Committee?
So, I'm wondering if, if you're looking to get a vote today or just to get comments from the
Members.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair's intent today is after discussion with the Members, seeing what the
discussion leads to, the Chair will make one of three recommendations: either he will
recommend just filing of the communication, which is a denial; he will ask for a motion to deny
the application; or he will grant the deferral allowing them to do what they had proposed. One of
those three. But, it is premature for me now to-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR CARROLL: --go with it and give the recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I just wanted to know what direction you might be going
because I, I feel first of all that the, the use has changed entirely from what it was, the application
was originally assessed for. And so, and even then, when the application was done there were
many outstanding questions unanswered regarding traffic impact. The Police Department was
against it because of I guess the driveway access. And, and my concern, Mr. Chairman, is that,
that we're not really following the process, that I think this needs to go back to the Planning
Commission with some schematic plans of what they actually wanna do. And so that the
Planning Commission can thoroughly review it based on the current plans, so that when it comes
back to this Committee, we have their input as is required under the County Code specific to
what the applicant is now asking for. I would also note that, you know, if, if he wants, if they
want to have any permitted uses, use in B-1 ... and then specific uses that are allowed within B2 ... taking out various other uses in B-2, that's what it looks like they're doing, then we should
have some idea of exactly what their intention is since this is a sensitive property, there's
wetlands involved, and it's a high traffic area, which is why they were denied by the Planning
Commission. And I'd also like to note that since the Planning Comm ... , Commission denied it,
it's gonna take six votes of the Council for it to, to leave Committee. And I just don't think we
have enough accurate information of what the true intention now is to make an informed
decision. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. And before I call on Ms. Johnson, I'd like the record
note that Mr. Pontanilla joined us at 1:40 p.m. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, and this would be a question I, I'm assuming
for Planning Department. Because we're just looking at this as a property with the uses that they
stipulated and the one's that they want removed from consideration, would it, would it be, or I
guess does it require that when they actually go forward with whatever plan that might be and
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whatever process they follow, they still need a Special Management Area Permit in order to do
any project on this property?
MR. ALUETA: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, at that point, it would come before the Planning Commission?
MR. ALUETA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. If after they flesh out what kind of plans they wish to do and
if, let's say, at this point you, Mr. Alueta, in cooperation with Mr. Foley and other consultants
feel that what they're doing is appropriate or feel that you could recommend some kind of, I
guess, action on the part of this body to moving forward with the application as it's, as it's going
to eventually be proposed, would you feel comfortable given what Ms. Anderson said allowing
the applicant to not have to come back through the whole process but then to come forward with
the Special Management Area Permit, or is there something that in your opinion would be left
out of the process by doing it in this particular way?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Alueta.
MR. ALUETA: I believe that as we've indicated it, it could, it could go a number of ways. There is
something to be said for a clean application from the get-go. If it was in the intent to try to move
it forward based on what's being proposed, I guess, the Council would have to feel comfortable
that based on the information you have in front of you, as well as, and, and their proposals that
you have a, a broad enough framework of the impacts that are being proposed on the list of
items. When you, as indicated, you do a Change in Zoning, you're doing a land use designation,
not a, not a site specific development. And that, and so you need to be comfortable with that
information you had before you that impacts the most, the greatest impact of whatever use is
proposed has been assessed to some, to some degree that you feel comfortable that the zoning
designation is the appropriate. At the level of the . . . once they've gotten that zoning
designation, the SMA would more fine-tune the types of impacts that the specific ... on the
ground development would occur and the uses and the more specific use. So, we would require,
yes, the traffic study as well as a more enhanced drainage study to determine whether or not from
an environmental standpoint the project was consistent with the CZM laws. And also, you know,
from a land use issue if it meets the intent of what the zoning category was. So, I mean, it, it's
hard to give you a straight answer. I'm sorry. It's just that, you know, that you have to feel
comfortable that the framework that the zoning category has and the overall, the worst possible
impact that could happen, you have enough information. I think ... what was being proposed at
the time and the uses that were proposed to the Commission, they obviously voted "no" based on
it. And then also given the fact that you, you are four years down the line, I would think that
traffic has changed significantly since that time. And so, if you're trying to move, trying to get
this or feel more comfortable, I think at a, at a base minimum there needs to be a new traffic
study. If you're, if you wanted to see, I mean if you wanted to keep it within the Council level
right now and not kick it back altogether, you need that to at least give you an idea of what based
on their new proposed uses.
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MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chainnan, I just wanted to add that the basic difference between the two procedures:
1) keeping it at the Council versus starting over and going to the Planning Commission. The
basic difference is who's gonna have the big public hearing with the neighbors and the, the
recommendation from the KCA? At four or five years ago when this was reviewed previously,
there was substantial concern by the neighbors, primarily related to traffic and access. We have
no idea whether the, the neighbors are the same and have the same concerns. They may have
less concern given it's a different use, but there'll also probably be different people to some
extent. And, you know, you, you appoint the Planning Commission to take those public hearings
for you. If you feel that this project needs to be processed expeditiously, then you can choose to
take that hearing yourself, but that ... the, the fact that there was controversy previously, you
know, as an indication that it's quite possible that that may still exist. The traffic on South Kihei
Road hasn't gotten better in the last four years.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and, Mr. Chair, the only reason that I'm trying to, I
guess, make a detennination in my mind as to what would be the better way is ... I'm going to
put myself in the position of the people who have come forward--and, I guess, this was done
what four years ago--and try to give them the benefit of the doubt so that they don't have to
begin all over again as long as the key things that would be components of this particular
development would be outlined and, you know, that we could condition: environmental issues,
environmental impacts of drainage, traffic. All those things would need to be addressed, in my
opinion, and have some kind of a concept of what was going to go there. I did speak with the
gentlemen and Mr. Munekiyo separately, and my basic thought after discussing this with them,
they had also talked about Smart Growth and Village Mixed Use type concept where people
actually live above their businesses and restricting those kinds of businesses to lower impact. So
from that perspective, I think that it's something that I would really like to see. And I don't want
to be difficult, but by the same token I think that in order for the Council to move forward and it
probably ... if it takes them a while, it may not be this Council. It would be the next Council. I
don't know what would better for them. I know that they're gonna have to do these studies no
matter what, but in tenns of process I don't know what the agenda looks like at the Planning
Commission. And so, if we can at some point, whichever way this goes, give them some idea of
the concerns of the Council because at some point they will have to come back to us, even if they
go back to the Planning Commission. They're gonna have to come back to us again. So, I
personally would like to give them as much guidance as possible and have some kind of a public
hearing so that at least we would know from the public what they would or would not want to
see there, if anything, and at least let these gentlemen know that the public doesn't want. And
then if it's not usable for the plans that they have, they can either sell it or have the County
acquire it for some other public purpose based on it's current land use designation. So, that's my
mindset, and I would just like to be fair to them so they know where to go. Thank you, Mr.
Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chainnan, thank you very much. Chainnan, the first question would
be to, to you. If the item is deferred at this particular point, taking into consideration the agenda
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size that you deal with, what is the possibility of this particular item being scheduled again
before this term is over?
CHAIR CARROLL: Very problematic. It's ... as you know, we have a very heavy schedule. I do not
know how long it will take for the applicant to get back the necessary information before we can
even consider re-posting.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. And, for the Planning Department, if the request was to
resubmit a clean application, then can the, can the Department give us some kind of a ... I guess
a better understanding of the timetable that would be involved for the Commission to actually
hear the applicant again?
MR. FOLEY: The, the majority of the time involved would be for the applicant to get a new traffic
study and take that traffic study before the neighborhood and the KCA. I would imagine that
that would, that process would probably take three or four months. Once they submit that
application and traffic report, we would normally be able to schedule it within a, a month or, or
six weeks because the Commission meets every two weeks. So, the, the time really is on their
side more than, than ours. One minor consideration is that what ... they, the applicant paid the
application fees five years ago and we spent that money five years ago. If, if we're basically
starting over with a, a different set of uses and a new traffic report and new KCA
recommendation, it really would be fairer to, to have new application fees as well rather than
have the application subsidized by the general public. The other thing is that I ... if, if the
project is deemed by the Council to be significantly different, and the uses appear to be
significantly different than a hardware store, I think it would be prudent if not absolutely
required to get a recommendation from the Planning Commission. I'm not sure they'd feel
slighted because they have plenty to do, but that is their purpose -- making recommendations to
you on changes in zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER
Thank you. I think we're, we have an unfortunate situation
this
particular application, application given the length
time it's been around. I think I see the
Planning Department's report is dated September 27, 2002, but I see comments back in August
of 2001, and I don't know when their application was first submitted. But this seems like an
unusually long time for an applicant to be waiting for an up or down by this body. I think that
also if we do decide that this is, is so significantly different than what was originally planned,
that starting anew would probably be in the best interest of the applicants. However, I do not
believe that they should pay any additional fees for the review of their application because this
was not handled in a timely manner. Now be it ... albeit it's a ... not the Planning Department's
fault, so that only leaves the other organization's fault, which is sitting right here. And this, this
is, this is a heck of a way to treat our small business people. And while we're always talking in
rhetoric it seems like about how we support small business, it's things like this that show what
kind of support we have or we don't have. And I, I feel that, you know, in, in trying to be fair
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with the applicants that at the very least those fees should not be collected or required. The other
question that I had was if ... can we at this point change the zoning instead of to B-2, B-2
Community Business District to a Country Town Business Zoning? Can we do that now without
going through a whole lot of stuff?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Alueta or Mr. Foley?
MR. ALUETA: I'm gonna defer to the Corp. Counsel given the-MR. GIROUX: I, I believe that there, there's two different way ... well, three different ways that a
zoning application makes its way through the process, and the one we're looking at now is an
applicant initiated zoning change and, and we've seen how that's been processed. The other way
is that the Director can suggest a zoning change, and then the other, the third way, is the Council.
All of those have their separate procedures. If we're going to suggest a, a totally different
zoning, then we would have to start from square one, but, you know, if it would be coming out of
the Council, then the Council would be initiating. It would, it would be handled as a Council
initiated zoning change and there's different rules and, you know, on how it's processed and
timelines and voting and, and such. So, to start right now ... I don't, I don't think it would be
proper. It would have to be initiated through certain channels in order to start that. It's not to say
that it can't be done, but it's just procedurally it, it wouldn't start now. It would, it would start
through another process of getting a Council initiated change or a Director initiated change or
have the applicant go back with the suggestion to say, hey reapply, and do it, do it that way.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I mean in light of what it says, you know, in the Community Plan
regarding those properties abutting residential areas, to me we should be looking at all those
properties ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... and perhaps advise people that are coming in that are
abutting residential areas to request a, a Country Town Business or B-CT. I don't know how we
refer to it these days. I think it's Country Town Business or CTB. All these alphabet soups, my
goodness. But to, to have them from the get-go look at that because that kind of development is
more transitional between a pure commercial and residential. So, I can see a place for the
Country Town Business Zoning Classification to be applied in instances like this 'cause this is
not the first application to come through along South Kihei Road that has, you know, raised a lot
of concern and ire in the neighborhoods because they got a, a big corum ... , you know, a
commercial thing right next door to them. So, I think that if we look at it as a transition zone,
that it's a little more palatable for the neighborhoods and actually fits the character of the
residential neighborhoods more. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
MR. ALUETA: If I may, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, Mr. Alueta.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. I understand what you're, you're saying and when the application first arrived
and we reviewed it relative to the Community Plan, our first reaction was that this needs to be a
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B-1 Neighborhood Business Zoning, not requesting for a B-2. However, the applicant at, at the
time was seeking to get a hardware store. It was a very specific use even though it was a Zoning
Change at just . . . Land Use Zoning Change. Hardware stores are not listed in the B-1
Neighborhood Dis ... , District. Therefore, the only way, the way in which, I guess, the Planning
Department at the time when we made our recommendation to the Commission was that we
would go with a B-2. However, we stripped out everything that we possibly can except for
basically the hardware store, and, and even at that the Commiss ... , I mean there was some
concern by, by the, by the Commission at that time. I think what the applicant is attempting to
do now is continue on the line of the B-2 and stripping it further down to satisfy more concerns
that, that have gone around with regards to the neighbors as well as addressing the Commission.
And so, that's, that's why they needed the B-2. That's why it was selected for B-2 rather than
B-1 just because there was only specific uses. If you go B-1, you can't pick a use from a B-2
category. You can only go downward and strip out. And I, and like I said I see this ... for the
Council to move forward either, in either direction, it's either you need to find that the
application with its proposed changes is not that significant, therefore, no new application or
public hearing is required, and that you would just need to get a six, six person vote to move the
thing forward to overturn the recommendations of the, the Planning Commission, and that you
feel that somehow that the propos ... , proposal by the applicant addressed the concerns that the
Commission may have had and what you have. Or, if you find that it is a significant change that
it needs to be, I, I think that the cleanest way is, is to just take the recommendations of the
Commission and just have them have a whole new application and go forward through it.
Although it's been four years, that seems to be the only cleanest way is to just start from scratch
with a brand new application and going back through the whole public hearing process. And
then so, I think the only way if you want to avoid that is to somehow find that there hasn't been a
significant ch ... , change from the original proposals.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Alueta or Mr. Foley, is, is this the, I
guess, a common occurrence where you have an applicant wanting a rezoning but yet there is no
seen these too often, but
specific project tied to it? I, I don't know ... for me I
(inaudible) what's the Department's position on that?
MR. FOLEY: You know, I, I, I would guess that it's probably half and half. Some of the times there's ..
. there's a Change in Zoning application is, is with a specific use in mind. And, and quite often
it's for a commercial building and if it gets approved, then they seek tenants from a long list of
permitted uses. So, I, I think that's really next. The one admonition that we always make is that
when the Council approves the Change in Zoning, they're not approving any specific use or
project even though you might see a drawing or a series a drawings of a building and parking lots
and signs and everything. You're approving a zoning and not a specific building or use, and we
have been burned on that a number of times. I won't use any specific examples. You can
probably think of a few, but where the impression was given that it was for a specific use and
then something happened and that specific use evaporated and one of the other permitted uses
- 10 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
August 16,2006

got built to a lot of people's surprise. So, you have to look at the list of pennitted uses and the
regulations for the zone, not keep ... not, you know, that it's only for the use that's given as an
example. And that, that's why Mr. Munekiyo mentioned that they would do to potential or
possible site plan scenarios just so that, that the Council could have an idea of what, what
possibilities existed. But it, it really is mixed. We do have some that come in as a specific use
and stay that way and others that, you know, we, just look at the list of ... and or co ... , Code.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know, I don't think it's entirely the
fault of the Council that this hasn't come forward in four years. Back when the Planning
Commission denied this request, the recommendations at that time from the Planning Director
were that they needed to do a traffic impact analysis, and here we are four or five years later and
there's ... they still need to do a traffic impact analysis. So, if this had come forward to us any
sooner, we would not ... and as we don't have today a traffic impact analysis. So, I don't know
how we're expected to make an infonned decision without that, number one. And number two,
in that the applicant knew back in 2001 that a hardware store was not an acceptable use for the
community. And the Planning Commission, they've had some four years to come up with a new
schematic and come to us with something more than just a letter saying we intend to get these
together for you. So, I think we need to send this back and, you know, the, any kind of a hearing
that we have here on this Change of Zoning is only going to be noticed as an item on our agenda
and the extent of that notice is a very small blurb in The Maui News. It's a whole different thing
to have a notice sent to your home if you live within 500 feet radius of the project, which is what
happens when it goes before the Planning Commission. People are specifically notified within
500 foot radius that this is coming up and then that allows them to get the infonnation and see
what's happening and come in and testify. Now, we don't know specifically what the use is
going to be. There's some scenarios brought forward, but I would like to note that B-1, they're
asking for B-1 uses, and B-1 includes grocery stores. And I think grocery stores are just as high
impact, if not more high impact, than a hardware store as far as traffic. So, I really feel we need
to have a specific, and while in the Change in Zoning we are actually attaching a zoning category
to, to the parcel, many times there are specific uses. I, I can't remember any Change in Zoning
came before this Council in the eight years I've been here that doesn't attach a specific use.
How can you assess the impacts if you don't know what the use is gonna be? You can't analyze
what the impacts might be. So, and many of the Change in Zonings also have in their conditions
that the, the proposal or the project shall be de ... , developed as represented to the Councilor to
the Planning Commission. And, it doesn't do us any good to have a report that is five years old
that doesn't address the current request. I think we're outside the requirement of the Code by
going forward on this because they have changed their use and, you know, I think it's to their
advantage to go back to the Planning Commission and get an approval for a use that the
community and the Planning Commission would support 'cause then they would only need five
votes from this body. Six votes is a hard thing to do. And the way it stands right now that's what
they're going to need and, and it's based on a denial of the, of the Planning Commission on a
project that they no longer intend to do. So, we're outside the Code on this, Mr. Chair, that's my
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opinion, and I think we need to have a new application submitted that actually addresses the
intended use and gives us an accurate impact analysis and an accurate traffic report. Otherwise,
we're making an uninformed decision. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion? Ms. Tavares followed by Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I, I'm just wondering if, you know, in the, in the Staff Report
or the Planning Department Report dated September 27, 2002, on page 19 and subsequent pages
is a traffic analysis study. So, you know, was a traffic analysis done or not done for this project
at the time ofthe application? It's on page 19,20, and 21, and 22.
MR. ALUETA: Correct. The traffic analysis was done for the project. I'm not sure.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, it's not like they never did one, right?
MR. ALUETA: No, they did one-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: --back in 2001 or 2002. The applicant did a full-on traffic study to show ... and tried
to come up with some mitigation measures at the same time.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And this was presented to the Planning Commission?
MR.ALUETA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It was with the package?
MR. ALUETA: It was attached as an exhibit.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. It was attached as an exhibit
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: --you can see I had cut and pasted the, the-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. ALUETA: --table showing the AP on page 19.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
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MR. ALUETA: And, I think we ... our standard practice was to give us, attach an exhibit. ... May
have done it or not ... I'm ... it's been a couple of years.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, yeah. Just a few. Thank you. No, I just, I just wanted to, you
know, clarify that because it seemed to me that they did do one because there were these pieces
in there. But, you know, that just goes back still to the same thing ... you know, the length of
time that this has taken to come to the, to, to this floor. It's come to the Council but not to the
floor. And who knows what the Council back then, ifit had been taken up, would've voted. You
know, like you say, it would take six votes to override a recommendation of the Planning
Commission. So, you know, they should've been told up or down a long time ago. And, and that
to me is, is what bothers me. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm just reading in the Residential District, which is currently now
the zoning because there's all kinds of uses within R-3, which would be churches, day care
nurseries, schools, hospitals, convalescent homes, government housing, housing for low and
moderate income families, public utilities substations, and domestic type businesses in the home.
Given that they have underneath, I guess the minimum lot size requirements of 10,000 square
feet in R-3, if they were to propose some type of use within the R-3, how many actual units
could they get on this property or would it ... because it's not been, I guess, subdivided into
separate lots, would they only be able to get one dwelling unit? Or, would they be able to go
forward and get four or just sell it and have somebody else get the, I guess, the permits to build
additional dwellings?
MR. ALUETA: You, you, are you asking like under the existing zoning?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Under the existing.
MR.

What are, what are--

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
MR. ALUETA: --what is their development potential?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, what could they do?
MR. ALUETA: Without they could build a house and an ohana unit, okay. Potentially, if they
subdivided they could do four lots, so four homes and four ohana units, but that would require an
SMA permit. Or, at least, some, some type of major for the subdivision itself.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. And because all these other ... Oh, I see, they're special
uses that have to be approved within, so they could build a residence but they would have to be
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granted a Special Use Pennit to have any of these other things that I just itemized. Is that
correct?
MR. ALUETA: You know, they can't do any commercial uses within the Residential District. That is
why they're seeking a zoning change.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, it's pennitted uses within Residential Districts, are singlefamily dwellings, greenhouses, parks and playgrounds, schools-MR. ALUETA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --accessory buildings.
MR. ALUETA: Oh, I see what you're saying.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, I'm asking you what can they do with this thing right now 'cause
there's-MR. ALUETA: They could do whatever is listed within the R, the Residential District.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. So, they could do a nursery school?
MR. ALUETA: Yes, with a special ... yeah, I believe there's a County Special Use Pennit or under
whatever the guidelines of the Residential District.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, it just says within Residential Districts the following uses shall
be pennitted. And then there's quite a few, even a B&B.
MR. ALUETA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, and that doesn't require a Special Use Pennit. So, I, I guess
what
asking is because there are uses within the existing zoning that they already have
one of these other areas
maybe, would it be better for us to recommend that they look
doing some of the uses which might be compatible with what they wanted to do? Let's say, we
would allow somebody to do a day care or a nursery school.
MR. FOLEY: The primary use that they're looking for is offices and offices are not allowed in
Residential Districts.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. FOLEY: They want, they want apartments above offices and R-3 doesn't allow offices.

14 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
August 16, 2006

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, it says un ... , here under Special Use, under H., under
19.08.030, Special Uses, approved ... and, and this would be within the Residential District. It
says certain domestic type businesses in the home.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, that's not in the home.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And so?
MR. FOLEY: Yes, they, they want professional offices. That's not allowed in the home. They, they
want an office building with apartments upstairs.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So you're saying if you built a two-story home and you lived
above it and you had a day care on the bottom floor, you couldn't do that?
MR. FOLEY: Yes, but they want offices. They don't want a day care.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, maybe they would change what they want.
MR. FOLEY: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, we don't have to be stuck in one little pigeon hole.
MR. FOLEY: Then we wouldn't have to process an application.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I think any use that they have of this property or intended
use if they go forward, they're gonna need an SMA permit. Is that correct? And in order to get
an SMA permit, they have to have their Community Plan designation and their zoning consistent.
And the Community Plan designation is Business.
I don't think they want to go through the
onerous process of getting a Community Plan amendment, which would require an
environmental assessment. So the only direction here is Business, and I just wanted to clarify
regarding the traffic report that I mentioned. It is a recommendation from the Planning
Department at the July '02 meeting. And this was a contention at, at, at the meeting at that time
that the ingress and egress to the parcel was not sufficient. The level of service at that time was
D & F on that roadway, and so that's why the Police Department objected to the driveway as
well as the Planning Commission. So ... that was the issue I'm talking about and they still have
to address that issue. You gotta have ingress and egress off South Kihei Road into that parcel,
and it's only going to be worse since we're four, five years down the road of how to address that.
And I think that until we get a traffic report that addresses how they're going to be able to ingress
and egress this parcel, no matter what the use is, that we have no way of knowing how it will
impact the community. South Kihei Road is already a bumper to bumper experience and this is
an ... specifically crit. .. , critical area because it's right kind of in the middle, well not that far
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from it from ... a roadway. Let's see that's Lipoa, so that would be ... the next roadway is?
Can you help me out, Joe, on the map?
MR. ALUETA: This is, yeah, this is down from Lipoa-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. Well, do you know the-MR. ALUETA: --and down from St. Theresa's.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. So what's that roadway right there at, the closest cross
roadway across the street from the Maui Gardens Condominiums? It's not noted on the map.
But at any rate, Mr. Chair, I think that, that the issue about the traffic is how they're gonna get
people in and out of this parcel without backing up the traffic on South Kihei Road and without
actually requiring the people trying to get in and out to wait an exorbitant period of time before
they can merge into the traffic. And that was what was brought up by the police back in 2001. It
was also addressed by the Department requesting that they, the applicant shall prepare a traffic
impact analysis report for the project's driveway intersection for South Kihei Road. A future
peak hour level of service for left tum movements entering or exiting the property is bound to
operate at level of, level of service D or worse. The applicant at its own cost should implement,
blah, blah, blah. So, they were requested to do that back then and, and we need that information
now I think to make-MR. FOLEY: We-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --a decision.
MR. FOLEY: --we agree. And, and the applicant has already agreed to do a new traffic rep ... , report.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I think it should be based on what their intended use is and if
it is offices with apartments, that there's a formula to tell how many cars that's gonna produce as
opposed to a hardware store or a grocery store or any other permitted use. And that would give
everybody a clear idea of what their intention is, what the impacts would be, and allow the
community to get behind this
support. And I
that because it's being changed and
because there was so much opposition, probably
the condominium owners right next door,
that the community deserves to have a second shot at this if everything, if the plans have
changed. And, you know, going to the KCA is not the same thing as sending out notices to
surrounding homeowners. KCA Planning Committee consists of maybe five people. That does
not, in my opinion, represent the whole community. So, I'd like to see this go back, have them
redo their application for what their current intended use is, make it clean, and then we won't
have ... and get the traffic report done. I, for one, am not going to put anything else on South
Kihei Road unless it's adequately mitigated because we all know we're facing back up traffic
everywhere. And I don't know if any of you spend any time on South Kihei Road, but I do and
it's not only ... not only a, I guess, an irritant that you can't get in and out oftraffic there. But I,
I consider it a safety hazard because we have so many visitors crossing South Kihei Road to get
to beaches. And I, I think that we need to have this information so that we're not putting
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everybody at risk if we make a decision that we don't have this information in front of us. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Members, it was mentioned that we need a super
majority to take a vote, presumably that would be a vote to either pass or deny since the Planning
Commission had recommended denial. For the members of the public and so the Members will
be clear, I'm going to ask Corporation Counsel to comment now on the rule to ... that we need
six members to vote on an application that has come to us from the Planning Commission with a
recommendation for denial. Mr. Giroux.
MR. GIROUX: Thank you, Chair. Just to clarify, this is an applicant requested Change in Zoning. In
the Charter under Section 8-8.6, it, it mentions the idea of the, the super majority when the
Planning Commission disapproves, but what that's talking about is when it's a Council initiated.
And that's why when we started that discussion of Council initiated, this is one of the rules that
would be different than, than what we're looking at now. Also, your own Rules about Council
procedures also mirrors that same rule and it basically applies to when it's proposed by Council.
And so because the Planning Commission denied it does not mean in this situation that you do
need a super majority. It just means that if, if you were to have proposed it and then the, the
Planning Commission were to have denied your proposal, when it came back the Council would
have to then, have to pass it with a super majority.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Giroux. I just wanted to make sure that was clear to everyone.
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I, I'm sorry, Mr. Chair. I was having a side conversation
and I missed the citation. If, if-MR. GIROUX: For, for the Charter? It's Section 8-8.6(2) and it starts off with any revisions of the
general plan, zoning ordinance or other land use. That's, that's the section. And then with your,
your Rules regarding quorum and vote, I believe its Section 3(b)(4) to adopt revisions or
amendments to the general plan, zoning ordinance or other land use ordinances. So, those two
sections mirror each other.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, but that's for things that is initiated by the '.

AlllllH_H.

MR. GIROUX: Right. That, that is exactly what I said.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. But what about ... you haven't, you haven't quoted
anything out of the Code regarding a majority vote for a denial by the Planning Commission.
MR. GIROUX: No, there's ... I believe there is none. The only thing I could find was that within your
own Rules there is a mention about, and I don't think it's applicable in this situation; the
Planning Department would have to correct me if I'm wrong, but under that same Section 3(c)(3)
to approve a change in zoning for which protests are filed. And I don't believe, even though
there was, there was testimony against, against the project, and the Planning Commission, I don't
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think fonnal protest were filed to number 40 percent of the real estate owners situated within the
distance of 500, 500 feet of the project. So that would be a factual detennination that would
need to be clarified by the Planning Department.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, did you search the County Code for this requirement or you're
just not recollecting it?
MR. GIROUX: Well, I, I don't see it in the Charter and I don't see it in your Rules.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: I'm asking about the County Code?
MR. GIROUX: No, I did, I did not do a full search of the County Code, but I don't believe there's
anything in there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll check myself. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further questions at this time? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I don't know, Mr. Foley and Mr. Alueta, during the discussions
'cause I haven't read all the minutes of the original meeting and of course some of the Members
have changed, because one of the issues that we're taking up in fact tomorrow is the Open Space
Master Plan and some of the reservation of spaces of certain key areas in the Kihei community.
Have you either through General Plan or through looking back through these minutes at any
point, has any acquisition on the part of the public for public use, preservation of wetlands that
type of thing for public use, has this property ever been looked at to acquire?
MR. ALUETA: My, my only recollection of the property is that there was, when they came in or the
property . . . for some, for some reason or another they did an enhanced wetland. So, the
wetlands that are there now have been enhanced I think to ... so they were able to fill part of the
wetland.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But if we were to do let's say a wetland restoration program
or part of trail system or anything of that sort, has that ever been discussed in KCA or anything
along those lines? Or, has it never?
MR. ALUETA: They, they were already, did a wetland enhancement on the property. So what happened
was to en ... , enable them to fill portions of the property, and during the development, I believe,
for the Kihei Veterinary Clinic--we believe this was one property at one time where the Kihei
Veterinary Clinic is on--is that in order to fill part of it they enhanced the ... enhanced or
restored-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: --the, the remainder of the wetland. And that-- 18 -
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MR. FOLEY: That's what would be saved.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And so, there would be no other purpose, I guess, in keeping this or
would we have to go back to the community to see what their input or take might be on acquiring
space such as this to, for public purpose?
MR. ALUETA: You would have to go back through the Community Plan process. I believe as
indicated, as I sort of mentioned or prefaced earlier, that this did go through the Community Plan
process, and that's when this property was changed from Residential to Business.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And that was the last go around I think you had mentioned?
MR. ALUETA: Yes, to the last go around.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So before that its use was always Residential?
MR. ALUETA: Yes, it was designated Residential.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So through that Community Plan amendment process
essentially that placed the owner of the property in conflict so that they couldn't do anything
with the property. Is that correct?
MR. ALUETA: I'm, I'm not following your question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, when you have a Community Plan that's inconsistent with the
underlying zoning, you essentially can't do anything with your property.
MR. ALUETA: Correct. If it's, well ...
MR. FOLEY: You can build a house on it.
MR.

Yeah, you can build a house on

But there was ... they, they're the ones

sought--

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
MR. ALUETA: --the Business designation with the intent of once they got the Community Plan
designation, they'd come forward to the Commission and to this Council for a zoning change to
some type of a Commercial designation in which as indicated earlier where the original plan was
an Ace Hardware. Now that's morphed to something else.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. And, and that's my whole point is that they're thinking at that
point in time would be that they would build a hardware store or something, which they went
forward, sought the Community Plan change because of changes that were going on in the Kihei
community. Now because of changes that have really come about and they aren't able to go
forward with that plan, they're kind of caught between this rock ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... if we
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were to go back to the community and just get input, I know that my Committee's going to be on
another, you know, the North-South Collector Road and the Open Space Master Plan for South
Maui going to be in Kihei tomorrow. So, you know, I, I mean may ask privately what some of
the people feel about this particular property. But if let's say there was public desire to acquire at
this point in time based on the inconsistency between the Zoning and the Community Plan
Designation, and we were to Change Zoning or Community Plan, and make it Open Space and
try to acquire, would that be something that the Department would consider supporting or
looking at or even having us pursue?
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, we, we would of course look at it but, you know, you're, if you look at the
aerial photograph that was given to you today, you'll see that this, this parcel was in the, in the
middle of the block, and the wetland is already enhanced. So, if, if it was to be acquired for
Open Space, it would probably be like a, a neighborhood park, and, and that's not the, that's not
the type of, of park or size that the Parks Department has been encouraging. So, I think it's very
unlikely that, that the, we'd be very interested in, in acquiring a, a parcel in this location ev ... ,
even with the park. I think 10,000 square feet of the 44,000 square feet is, is the wetland .. .
sump like that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So roughly a quarter of the space?
MR. FOLEY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Alright. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. And, you know, the only
reason I'm looking at this is because right now these applicants have waited a long time to go
forward with some type of project. And right now because the Community Plan is inconsistent
with the zoning, I, I just really feel that because their original proposal got turned down they
can't really do much of anything with it, without going one way or the other. So, that's why I'm
asking the other questions that I am to see if there is any way that this Council, Planning
Commission, or members of the public might be interested in this property so that we could at
least move forward and let them know one way or the other what we want to do. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CARROLL:
Members, we're getting close to the point where the Chair is probably
going to make a recommendation. This is a rather unusual situation that we're in right now. And
it's been made very clear by everyone that this application obviously should not have taken this
long. And to the Members and the members of the public, I will say that when this Committee
was formed after the 2004 election, to say the least our agenda was formidable. We have heard
items that I've heard when I was on the Planning Commission nine years ago. But since this is
unusual and we are coming to the end, if there is no objection, I would like to call the applicants
to the podium.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Munekiyo. Mr. Munekiyo, at this time you've heard how far we
have gone. We usually don't do this, but because of the unusual circumstances I'm going to ask
if you would make any comment at this time.
MR. MUNEKIYO: I think, Mr. Chair ... first of all, we appreciate the opportunity of coming before
the Committee. It's been a, a fairly lengthy process as, as everyone has acknowledged. And
although listening to the discussions been quite helpful for us, and if I could just comment that I
don't think from what I heard that the applicant disagrees with what has been discussed, and that
is the reason why we had put forth our proposal. Yes, it has been a long time. Yes, there has
been changes in traffic conditions. But, if I may just clarify that when the application was first
filed, it was a consolidated Change in Zoning, Special Management Area Application back in
2001. Consolidated because at that point there was a specific use in mind. Now although the use
has been abandoned, the, the need for zoning has not changed. And in fact, what we're seeking
is the ability to gain some utility off the property through a more narrowed scope of zoning. I, I
think, again, we agree that there needs to be a look at what proposals might arise out of the
application, what the associated impacts may be. I think where there is a difference in perception
perhaps, Mr. Chairman, is, is one of approach, whether the applicant should perhaps withdraw
the application at this point or let the matter be filed and start all over, or whether the matter
should be ... allowed to proceed as a, a Council matter because in either way, in either case, the
same kind of exercise or analysis would be undertaken. So, I, I suppose from the applicant's
standpoint the preference would be to allow it to go through the Council process rather than start
over. But, I think, we, we all agree that it's been a long time. We all agree that there are certain
needs to be addressed. And so, I, I again, I just want to make it clear that ... we appreciate the
discussion. It's, it's something that we full ... , fully concur with as far as the substance of the
discussion. And again, it's just a matter of approach and again that's, that's all I'd like to
comment on, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Munekiyo. Is there any, any questions for the applicant? Seeing
none. Thank you very much. Members, the floor is still open before the Chair gives his
recommendation. Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you.
Oh,

Munekiyo.

Mr. Munekiyo.
sorry,

Pontani1la. I

see you raised

over

there.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I raised it late.
CHAIR CARROLL: We'll buy you a longer arm.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Munekiyo, in, in regards to going back to the
community as well as Kihei Community Association and doing the traffic study, when do you
intend to do that? Upon this approval or if you don't get approval today, when do you plan to do
all three items?
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MR. MUNEKNO: What we're hoping, Council Member, is that the Committee would consider a
deferral action and that allow us to do the studies, to do the schematic alternatives, to meet with
the community, and we will make an earnest effort to reach out to everyone. And then, perhaps
after two or three months have that information ready. We understand that given what the Chair
has said that we may not have that opportunity to return this term. But, I guess, again it would
be something that we'd initiate if the Committee decides to defer. Now again, there are certain
risks that the applicant understands with that action as well. So, again, we're, we're all dealing
with a very difficult set of circumstances and we're just trying to make the best of it at this point.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. If I can ask just a question
regarding the applicant's lease with Azeka's for the hardware store. How long is that lease for?
MR. KAMITAKI (from the audience): It was signed for ten years.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It's ten years?
MR. MUNEKIYO: Ten year lease.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And I asked that because of the issue of time-MR. MUNEKNO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --that the applicant has to deal with. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions? Seeing none. Thank you, Mr. Munekiyo. Members, any
further discussion before the Chair has comment before he makes his recommendation?
Ms. Johnson followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because of the legal issues that Ms. Anderson raised
regard to a
particular position about that this wasn't a legal way to consider this application, and given
comments that were made by the applicant because these where conjoined applications both for
the Change in Zoning and also for the permitted uses, is there some way, Mr. Chair, that we
could get a written legal opinion about which would be correct because I think if it was a, an
application that was corning forward in two different parts? I'm, I just want to know whether or
not Ms. Anderson--and if you can give an, an answer right now, Mr. Giroux, that's fine.
MR. GIROUX: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Giroux.
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MR. GIROUX: I'd like to comment now. As far as what we're looking at, I think Joe mentioned that
the, the analysis is that we're looking at whether or not there's been a substantial change to this
Bill. Looking at that there's been a significant change in the use, if you see that, that's a sub ... ,
substantial change to the, the Bill itself, then you have to look at the Charter and, and see
whether or not going forward without including the Planning Commission would be a
circumvention of the Charter. And if you, if the Char ... , the purpose of the Charter is to get
recommendations and, you know, some guidance from that body, then by proceeding forward
without getting recommendations based on, you know, current time you ... there, there could be
a strong argument that you're circumventing the Charter. So that's something that really needs to
be looked at closely and, and debated as far as the body if you are going to, to do that because
the reality is it's only when it's going to be challenged will that be an issue. When you're
looking at a piece property that has gone through significant challenge as one of the proposed
uses, I think you can assume that any other proposed uses after that may also be controversial.
So by doing the most conservative thing in this situation, you will in the future avoid other, you
know, other actions that may even slow down the process even more than just starting over and
including the ... including the body of, of review that would give you a recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, in all fairness to the comments made by Mr. Munekiyo, even if
we were to vote, let's say to defer, what we should be doing in the interim based on what your
statement was that once we get input, once we get the information from the applicant that is a
little further down the line, then take that to the Commission, or would you say that at this point
in time we should take the item that we have before us and seek input from the Commission?
MR. GIROUX: Well, I, I think the applicant has to look at, at, you know, what, if, if they choose, if, if
they choose to suggest that you take that course of action, then they have to look at what kind of
risks they're exposing, you know, their, their project to as far as public action. I mean if, if
somebody's going to try to file an injunction or say that we didn't use the correct process or
yada, yada, yada. You know, there are, you know, there are ways that if you want to go back and
make it as clean as possible so you're not looking or waiting for some kind of outside action, you
know, to be filed in Circuit Court to try to slow this up or any, any possible way, the most
conservative approach is to do it the cleanest. And, and that way there would, there would be no
chan ... , there would be no possibility of challenge you took it back and, and treated it as a
clean procedure. And, and looking at the passage of time where so much has changed and
looking at the change
proposed use, the, you know, the most advisable thing is to take the
most conservative action even if currently that would look like the longest route. But, you know,
I mean if you're willing to roll the dice, and you're, you're gonna say well we'll just go until
somebody sues us, then that's, that's the risk, you know, that's the risk of, of, you know, the, the
choices that, that are, that are looked at, the options, I guess.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, in, in, in this particular case, if we understand some of the, I
guess, the situation that has transpired over time, and I heard Councilmember Tavares too
because I also, although I know that these fees that were paid way back when were to address
that particular issue. If we, as a Council, were to set, you know, deny this but issue a
recommendation to the Planning Commission or the Planning Director that when a new
application is submitted that we would request that the fees be waived. Can we even do that
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because I know that by Charter we also cannot direct the actions of any administrative official?
Would that be something that we would do or... ?
MR. GIROUX: You know, that, that raises some issues that I wasn't prepared to address today. As far
as that goes, yeah, I think you might be looking into, you know, possibilities of, of, you know,
overstepping the, the bounds of, of, of, you know, what, because the, as far as what the budget
set up is and, and, and such as far as directing the Director to waive fees and such, yeah, that is
treading into very, very treacherous waters, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and the only way that fees would be waived is ifit was a
Council initiated action for the Change in Zoning, where let's say, we wanted to do village mixed
use or whatever-MR. GIROUX: Right, because-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --a separate zoning?
MR. GIROUX: --by statute you wouldn't be, you wouldn't be required to, to, you know, pay filing fees
and such.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Alright, alright. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, I realize this is unusual, but I would like to call the applicant to the
podium again, if there's no objection?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Munekiyo.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Thank you, Chair, for the opportunity. Listening to the discussion, Members, and
then consulting with the applicant, we understand the very difficult set of circumstances the
Committee faces. And I think what the applicant would like to offer at this time if it's okay,
Mr. Chair, is that they would be willing to withdraw the application and start over. I, I think it
just sounds to be the best option for everybody. And, however, we would like to thank the
Committee for the opportunity. As Mr. Kamitaki mentioned, and I'd just like to reiterate because
he mentioned this to me, is that when they as a business, family business do things, they want to
do things the correct way, the right way, and they felt, they felt that this might be the west [sic],
best thing to do at this point. So, we make that offer and willing to start over.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Munekiyo, on behalf of myself as Chair, to you and your applicant, I would
like to say thank you for your concern for the community in withdrawing this application and
pursuing it again. I think it is better for all and we appreciate the sacrifices that you've made. I
am just really ... for myself I will say I'm really sorry that this took so long to be heard. But
since we are at this point, your withdrawal is appreciated. Thank you.
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MR. MUNEKIYO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members. Ms. Anderson is first, then we will call on Mr. Molina. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm, I'm just wondering if Mr. Alueta has the app ... , application
with him for this project?
MR. ALUETA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And is there a wetland's map included in the application?
MR. ALUETA: I believe, though, there was a wetland map attached as an exhibit in the Staff Report,
also, in the comments. I believe it came from the Army Corps.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I didn't, I didn't see it mentioned in the report itself, so that's why
I'm asking. But if it's an exhibit then ...
MR. ALUETA: It indicates, the Staff Report indicates, I believe, that the wetland encompasses 10,040
something square feet, and ...
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Is it an Army Corps of Engineer wetland map?
MR. ALUETA. Ah, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's pretty much not readable. Yeah, I'm looking at it, but it's
pretty much not readable. So maybe I can just borrow yours and look at yours when we're pau.
MR. ALUETA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. That was just my concern.
CHAIR CARROLL: And, Members, keep
mind that
application has been withdrawn and the
Chair will still be making a recommendation as soon as the Members have finished their
questioning.
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. And now that the applicant has stated
they're gonna withdraw the application, just for my own curiosity to the Department, what kind
of fees are they looking at in terms of costs?
MR. ALUETA: Oh, for refiling?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
MR. ALUETA: It'd be as established in your budget ordinance. It would be based on the valuation of
the project. And because it's a zoning change we would take the valuation of the land. So, and,
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and, it could range anywhere between a minimum of like $350 to I believe the max is, is set at
$7500. I'm not positive, but I think we have a max of that. But that would be for like a
$30 million project. So, I would not anticipate this one being more than a couple thousand-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, okay.
MR. ALUETA: --at the most.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Anything further before the Chair gives--oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Alueta.
MR. ALUETA: Oh, no. It was just indicated there is also ... and if they corne in later on, there is an
SMA application. It would be the same thing based on the valuation of the proposed build out
and tho ... , those fees.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Alright. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Anything further before the Chair gives his recommendation? Seeing none. The
Chair will accept a motion on the floor to file the communication.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Whoever.
CHAIR CARROLL: --Ms. Tavares. As the maker of the motion, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just want to thank the applicant for corning forward and removing the
It, it's good to hear
they're going to start all over again, and I
best
move. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Molina followed by Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I just want to commend the applicant for taking
this step. I think, you know, as they stated they kept to their word about as a family business
doing the right thing. And I think they should be commended and, you know, it's much
appreciated by all. And I would hope that when they do complete their new application that it's
taken up soon, mo ... , most likely by a future Council. But, I just wanna thank them for their
consideration and doing the right thing. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mr. Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And I echo the sentiments shared by Member
Molina. And I also would hope that when the app ... , when the application is complete and
forwarded to the, to the Department, that they would expedite the application as soon as possible
to help in the compensation of loss time in this particular application process. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would also like to remind Members that in other cases that we've
had, like the Ueoka property, and other situations, any Council Member may move this issue
forward as a land use change, you know, to hopefully just send the message that we wanna have
this addressed. And I patronize the Lahaina Ace Hardware and these people are very wonderful
people. They're very community minded. And I look at Walmart and I look at Borders and I
look at all of the huge retail development that has been approved in the past and I go, you know
what, if we could only treat some of our local businesses the way that some of the big box
retailers have been treated. I think it might help a little bit. I know they have way more money
than our local families, but I just want to commend these people for doing the right thing, and I
would be willing to do whatever I need to do to support small business. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Hearing none. All those in
favor, please signify by saying, aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oppose. Motion carried unanimously.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

CouncHmembers Hokama and Kane.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending FILING of communication.

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, and the applicant, and members of the public, especially out there in
Akaku that have joined us today, thank you for being with us. This Land Use Committee
Meeting of August 16th now stands adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..
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